
 

 1 

LINKED MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

ON OCTOBER 8, 2013 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 

 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor    
   Paul C. Aguilar   Councilor 
   Nick G. Salcido   Councilor 
   Sandra K. Nunley   Councilor   
   Judith E. Waters   Councilor 
   Jason Shirley    Councilor 
   Richard Doss    Councilor 
   Janell E. Whitlock   Councilor 
 
Absent:  J. R. Doporto    Councilor 
 
Also Present:  Steve McCutcheon   City Administrator 
   Eileen P. Riordan   City Attorney 
   Annette Barrick   City Clerk 
   Monica Harris   Finance Director 
   Stephanie Shumsky   Planning, Eng., & Reg. Director 
   Luis Camero    Public Works Utilities Director 
   Thomas Carlson   Public Works Director 
   Richard Lopez   Fire Chief  
   Danny Fierro    Police Chief 
   Patsy Jackson-Christopher  Director of CRC 
 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order 
 
0:00:02 Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance  
 
0:00:45 Mayor Janway explained that the Mayor's Student Advisory Board is 
present.  
Councilor Nunley explained that four years ago the Mayor asked her to form a Student 
Advisory Council.  She explained that the Council has had members from Alta Vista, 
PR, and the High School.  She introduced the students on the Student Advisory 
Council.  
 
0:05:53 Councilor Waters recognized the Fire Fighters for the great job they did 

in placing 1st in the Fire Fighter Challenge. 



 

 2 

Chief Lopez explained that there were six teams that participated in the Fire Fighter 
Challenge in Carlsbad and added that the Carlsbad team placed 1st.  He said the prior 
weekend the Carlsbad team went to Tyler, TX, where there were 32 teams participating, 
and Carlsbad again took 1st place.  He explained that Nationals begin in Vegas on 
October 22, 2013.  He explained that the Carlsbad Fire Fighter Challenge Team will 
compete in Vegas and currently stand 4th in the Nation.   
 
0:07:12 Mayor Janway introduced Jonathan Smith with the Carlsbad Current 
Argus.  
 
0:07:23 1.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
0:07:25 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Aguilar to 
approve the Agenda. 
 
0:07:29 Councilor Whitlock requested to remove Item D.3 Consider approval of 
a Joint Powers Agreement between the Eddy Lea Energy Alliance and the City of 
Carlsbad and add as separate Agenda Item.  
 
0:07:38 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes -Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doss, 
Nunley;  No - None; Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:07:54 2.  ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS  
A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on September 24, 2013  
B. Personnel Report  
C. Purchasing:  

1) Consider approval to Award RFP 2013-43, to Dr. Kim Lark, DO for the 
Medical Director Services for the Carlsbad Fire Department and Carlsbad Police 
Department  
2) Consider approval to Award RFP 2013-44, to Molzen-Corbin for Professional 
Engineering Services for the Callaway Drive Reconstruction in the amount of 
$250,000 
3) Consider approval to Award RFP 2013-48, to Molzen-Corbin for Professional 
Engineering Services for the Sheep Draw Well No. 6 Replacement Well, pending 
the negotiation of a satisfactory agreement 
4) Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-49, to RMCI, Inc. for the 2013 
Double Eagle Well Replacements Project, Phase II, in the amount of $1,337,487.29 
5) Consider approval to purchase a 2014, Dodge D4500, 4X4, AEV, Type I 
Ambulance pursuant to the HGAC Contract in the amount of $245,000  

 
 
 



 

 3 

D. Contracts and Agreements: 
1) Consider approval of the Memorandum of Agreement with the New Mexico 
Department of Transportation and the City of Carlsbad Municipal Transit for the 
FY-2014, USC Section 5311 Program 
2) Consider approval of a four-year Lease Agreement between the City of 
Carlsbad and John Deere Credit for two (2) TX Gators and one (1) Z920M Z-Trac 
Commercial Mower 
3) Consider approval of a Joint Powers Agreement between the Eddy Lea Energy 
Alliance and the City of Carlsbad 

E. Monthly Department Reports: 
1) Personnel Department Monthly Report for September 2013 
2) Planning, Engineering & Regulation Department Monthly Report for 
September 2013 

F. Board and Committee Appointments:  
1) City of Carlsbad Veterans’ Memorial Board: Bill Hollenkamp-remainder of 4 
year term  
2) Carlsbad Senior Recreation Center Advisory Board at San Jose Center: Betty 
Archuleta, Marvin Archuleta: 4-year term  
3) Lodgers’ Tax Advisory Board: Jill Fowler 4-year term  
4) Carlsbad Public Library Board of Trustees: Tom Langowski remainder of 4-
year term  
5) City of Carlsbad Disabilities Advisory Board: Robert Clements remainder of 4-
year term  

 
0:08:16 Mayor Janway explained that Item D.3 will be removed from Routine 
and Regular Business and placed as Item #3.  
 
0:08:33 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Waters to 
approve Routine and Regular Business. 
 
0:08:40 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes -Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doss, 
Nunley;  No - None; Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:08:57 3.   CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE EDDY LEA ENERGY ALLIANCE AND THE CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Mr. McCutcheon explained that this is an agreement that has been renegotiated.  He 
explained that the City of Carlsbad is one of four participants in the Eddy Lea Alliance.  
He explained that the Alliance was originally put together when the area was trying to 
recruit the GNep Project.  He explained that land was acquired between Lea and Eddy 
County that has future commercial value based on the desire to become the nuclear 
corridor.  He explained that there were some problems with the agreement in the areas 



 

 4 

of representation, tax allocation, accounting, and the entity being defined as a regional 
government.  He explained that all of the issues have been addressed in the agreement. 
 
0:10:49 Mr. Heaton explained that he is the Director from the City of Carlsbad 
for the Eddy Lea Energy Alliance.  
Mr. Heaton explained that the Alliance was formed in 2006 and purchased.  He 
explained that the Alliance is interested in using the 1000 acres acquired for interim 
storage.  He explained that there are four members and each member owns a quarter of 
the joint venture.  He added that the Alliance is organized under the Joint Powers 
Agreement by the State of New Mexico as well as the LLC provisions and under the 
New Mexico Economic Development Act.  He explained that the Alliance has been 
working on the agreement for a year and a half.  He explained that the purpose of the 
original agreement was for GNep.  He added that the agreement has to be approved 
exactly as it is in all four political subdivisions in order to proceed.  He explained the 
changes to the agreement:  

- Tax revenues  
- Fiscal Agent  
- Auditor  
- Director Members  
- Included Vice Chairman  
- Budget  
- Pro rata shares  
- Records/Reporting 

 
0:26:08 Councilor Whitlock asked if the governing board is the Alliance.  
Mr. Heaton explained that the governing board is the Alliance Board.   
 
0:26:28 Discussion regarding the annual operating budget of the Eddy Lea 
Energy Alliance.  
 
0:33:53 Mayor Janway said that he plans to appoint Councilman Shirley as the 
elected official for Carlsbad.  
 
0:34:04 Councilor Shirley explained that he is comfortable with the Budget 
because the Alliance has added elected officials from each governing body.  
Councilor Shirley explained that adding the elected officials adds communication and 
accountability.  Councilor Whitlock added that she served on this Board in 2008 and 
there were elected officials on the Board at that time. 
 
0:35:41 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Aguilar and seconded by Councilor Salcido to 
approve a Joint Powers Agreement between the Eddy Lea Energy Alliance and the City 
of Carlsbad. 
 



 

 5 

0:35:46 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Aguilar, Doss, Nunley;  No - 
Whitlock; Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:36:30 Mr. Edmundo Orozco said that he believes the City and County owe Mr. 
Heaton a big depth of gratitude for the hours, time, and work he has put into the 
Eddy Lea Energy Alliance.  
Mr. Orozco explained that he is not the most knowledgeable about the Eddy Lea 
Energy Alliance but he knows that Mr. Heaton is uniquely qualified to represent the 
City.  He explained that the Alliance is trying to give the City more of a future using the 
location and geography providing economic development for the area. 
 
Mayor Janway added that he agrees and feels that the City could not have a better 
representative then Mr. Heaton. 
 
0:38:28 4.  CONSIDER RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2012-68, A 
RESOLUTION CONDEMNING THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2401A 
WESTERNWAY, CARLSBAD, NM  
Ms. Riordan explained that Council condemned the property towards the end of last 
calendar year.  She explained the property is near the corner of Osborne and 
Westernway and was in very poor shape.  She explained after Council condemned the 
property, the County put the property on a tax sale.  She said that the building 
department determined that work was being completed on the property and red tagged 
the property.  She explained that the new owner contacted the City and stated that he 
purchased the property at a tax sale and was unaware that the property had been 
condemned.  She explained that the new owner Mr. Shah has cleaned the exterior and 
work has been done in the interior of the structure.     
 
Mr. Cass the Building Inspector, explained that the property remains in poor condition.  
He explained that from the photos provided it is probable that a building permit was 
required.  He added that the damage that was covered up on the interior will need to be 
re-exposed to address previous concerns.  He explained that the exterior foundation 
issues remain.  He added that it is going to take a thorough evaluation to determine if 
the property can be brought into compliance with current building codes.   
 
Councilor Doss asked why the photos have a date of 2005 on them.  Ms. Riordan 
explained when Mr. Shah brought the photos in, he had not changed the camera's 
automatic date stamp.  She explained that Mr. Shah submitted over 100 photos and she 
tried to pick the top 10.   
 
0:44:31 Mr. Shah explained that he was not aware that the property was 
condemned when he purchased the property.  
Mr. Shah explained when he purchased the property there were people living in the 
home.  He added that at the tax auction the County’s value of the property in 2008 was 



 

 6 

$28,000.  He explained that he was not expecting that the property would be worth 
anything at this time.  He explained once he purchased the property the main concern 
was the crack in the structure, which he has repaired.  He explained that he has painted 
inside and has started painting the outside.  He is asking that Council give him some 
time to bring the property up to code.   
 
0:46:33 Councilor Shirley asked Mr. Shah how long it would take him to 
complete the work needed on the property.  
Mr. Shah said it would not take him more than six months to complete. 
 
0:46:47 Councilor Doss explained that he has driven by and looked at the 
property and has seen a tremendous improvement in the property.  
 
0:47:03 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Shirley to review 
the property at 2401A Westernway in 90 days to review the status. 
 
0:47:32 Mr. Cass asked that Mr. Shah get the proper permits required to 
complete the work.  
 
0:48:05 Amended Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Shirley to rescind 
Resolution No. 2012-68, a Resolution condemning the property located at 2401A 
Westernway, Carlsbad, NM and review the property in 90 days to review the progress. 
 
0:48:28 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doss, 
Nunley;  No - None; Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:49:05 5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF TRANSFER OF STATE LIQUOR 
LICENSE, APPLICATION # 881812, TO SHAWNA CALHOUN, PRESIDENT, CAL’S 
SHADE WESTERN LOUNGE & PACKAGE, INC., LOCATED AT 1609-1611 S. 
CANAL STREET, CARLSBAD, NM  
Mr. McCutcheon explained that the City has had the required hearing regarding the 
transfer of the liquor license.  He explained no one appeared to object to the transfer.  
He explained that Mr. Calhoun recently passed away.  A member of Council has asked 
if probate would cause a problem with the action of the City to approve the transfer.  
Ms. Riordan explained that she spoke with the hearing officer at the State and was 
informed that the transfer of ownership happened prior to Mr. Calhoun’s death.  She 
said that the death will not affect the State's ruling or the City's consideration on the 
application. 
 
 
 



 

 7 

0:51:57 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Whitlock and seconded by Councilor Waters to 
approve Transfer of State Liquor License, Application #881812, to Shawna Calhoun, 
President, Cal's Shade Western Lounge & Package, Inc., located at 1609-1611 S. Canal 
Street, Carlsbad, NM. 
 
0:52:02 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doss, 
Nunley;  No - None; Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
 
0:52:24 6.  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
None to report. 
 
0:52:32 7.   ADJOURN  
 
0:52:35 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Waters to 
Adjourn. 
 
0:52:40 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doss, 
Nunley;  No - None; Absent - Doporto; The motion carried. 
  
1:07:56  Adjourn 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 
 
 

____/s/Dale Janway________________ 
     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______/s/Annette Barrick________ 

City Clerk 


